Date:
13 August 2002

To:
Vicky Slowe, Curator

Ruskin Museum, Coniston

From:
Dr. David Hanson


Department of English


Southeastern Louisiana University

Dear Vicky:

I am writing to open discussion about a new stage in an editorial project, which has engaged me for many years, and which has included numerous visits to Coniston. On behalf of my University, Southeastern Louisiana University, I have secured a formal agreement with the Ruskin Programme at Lancaster University jointly to produce a hypertext edition, The Early Ruskin Manuscripts, 1826–1842. 

The collaboration presents a terrific opportunity, as the edition will be paired with Lancaster’s edition of Modern Painters I (http://www.lancs.ac.uk/users/ruskin/empi/index.html). Since Modern Painters I was Ruskin’s first major publication, the two editions together will make available, for the first time, an acceptable scholarly edition of his complete writings from the earliest extant compositions through his first major book. Keith Hanley and co-directors of the Electronic Editing Project, Roger Garside and Ray Haslam, are onboard the project, as is a doctoral student, Alastair Doughty. At my University, staff is committed from the Departments of English and Computer Science.

For many years now, I have been researching the early writing of Ruskin, and I have now virtually completed gathering materials for the edition. The manuscripts held by the Ruskin Museum pertinent to the edition are, I believe:

“Sermon Book” (one of five, the other four held by the Morgan Library) 

“1830 diary” (loose page) 

sketchbook containing draft of “Poetry of Architecture”

Coniston has in the past granted me permission to quote from the Sermon Book in articles I have written about the juvenilia. I hope now that you will consent to the inclusion of all these manuscripts in a complete scholarly edition.


This time, I am additionally requesting to provide readers with images of the manuscripts. As you know, the Modern Painters edition is based as much on image as on word—an appropriate procedure in anything to do with Ruskin. An essential difference between the Modern Painters and Early Manuscripts editions, however, is that, in the former, the main reading texts consist of images of the original printed books, whereas in the latter the main reading texts will be transcripts, with images of the manuscripts provided only as information about the state of Ruskin’s draft or fair copy. It is not expected in Early Ruskin Manuscripts that a reader would be able adequately to decipher an electronic image for reading purposes. (In any case, the technology for navigating through the images of printed books, specially developed for the Modern Painters edition, will not work applied to images of the more chaotic manuscripts.)

I hope that you and your organization are able to lend your approval to this project. To give you an idea of where others stand on the issue, I have obtained consent so far from curators Sue Hodson at the Huntington, Vincent Giroud at the Beinecke, Robert Parks at the Morgan, and Stephen Wildman at the Ruskin Library. Princeton is in process of dealing with my request, but I don’t anticipate any difficulties. My present priority is to gain funding for the imaging, among other costs. I am applying for a Scholarly Editions Grant from the NEH, so I need to get an idea of the cost of imaging the three manuscripts listed above, by whatever means of imaging you deem appropriate.

The deadline for the grant application is September 1. Apologies for getting this out so late, but I had trouble finding your direct email address at first, and then other business intervened. For my immediate purposes with this grant application, I would very much appreciate hearing your thoughts about the edition and, if you are willing to participate, an estimate of the cost of imaging the manuscripts. If the decision is only tentative and the estimate only rough at this point, that will be adequate.


I realize that Coniston is unlikely to have resources for digitally imaging manuscripts very easily. I wonder if the Ruskin Library would be willing to take on the task, since they’re nearby and have a staff person to do it?

Please do not hesitate to ask me any questions about the project. Thank you very much for your time and consideration.

